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Constructed in 1914, the Frisco Railroad Depot was located on the site of 
an earlier depot which had been destroyed by fire in 1913. The new structure 
was designed to be fireproof. Supported by steel columns, its exterior walls 
were of red brick and concrete construction and were topped by a terra cotta 
cap. North to south the depot measured 229 feet; east to west it was 42 feet. Over 
each of the large glass in its western facade (track side) were horizontal wooden , 
canopies; the same was true of the main entrance on the east. The second 
level, which reached 35 feet above ground surface, measured 166 feet by 42 feet 
and was set equal distance from either end of the lower floor. The upper story 
windows on the east to west were canopied by slanted tile roofs. The building is 
low, wide and symmetrical, and vaguely Italianate in style. ~

In the interior of .the building, the first floor was devoted to passenger and 
freight.activities. From south to north, its rooms were divided-as follows: express, 
baggage, kitchen, lunch room (an old Harvey House), general waiting room (with ' , 
adjacent rooms for the news stand and toilets for white men and white women), 
ticket office, and Negro waiting (with adjacent toilets for men and women).

The second floor contained sleeping rooms for the women employees of the 
restaurant, offices for Frisco railroad officials, sleeping rooms for trainmen, 
and a large assembly hall (63" by 16') that was used by townspeople for public 
meetings. All walls within the depot were plastered, had chair rails, and utilized 
cornices of either wood or picture moulding. In the central waiting room the ceiling 
was beamed and the woodwork of the newstand was walnut. The toilets for white persons 
had marble floors and walls.

The Frisco depot at Hugo was closed as a passenger facility in 1960. Later 
in that decade the. company sold the building. Since then it has been utilized as a 
salvage yard and a wood chip factory. In 1978 it was purchased by the Choctaw 
County Historical Society, the objective to restore the structure to its original 
state and to house a museum that will display items demonstrative of the history 
of the town and the region.

Today, the exterior of the Frisco depot is little changed from its original 
appearance. Its windows have been boarded up pending the restoration of the 
original frames and the addition of new panes. The interior of the building has 
been altered, but not substantially. All fixtures and portions of some walls have 
been removed, as have the facilities of the ticket office.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Hugo Frisco depot symbolizes the importance of the railroad to the community and 
recalls an era of transporation in the history of the nation that tioday few can 
recall. Hugo, Oklahoma, owes its existence to the railroad. Building southwest out 
of Arkansas, the St. Louis and San Francisco (Frisco) reached the area tha is now 
Hugo in 1887, its tracks then being extended on south across Red River into Texas. 
In 1902 this line was intersected by another railroad also building out of Arkansas 
known as the Arkansas and Choctaw Railroad. At the junction of the two lines the 
town of Hugo was platted arid soon became the principal commercial center of the 
region. Its significance was recognized in 1907 when it was designated as the 
county seat of Choctaw County by the new state of Oklahoma. The stability of the 
town was further assured when the Frisco purchased the Arkansas and Choctaw Railroad 
and made Hugo the site of its regional headquarters and roundhouse.

As early as 1902 the Frisco constructed its first passenger station in Hugo. 
This original facility was found to be inadequate to the needs of the company, 
causing it to build a new depot about 1911. Two years later (1913), however, 
the wooden structure caught fire and burned to its foundations. Railroad officials 
determined to rebuild the depot, but out of materials that would not burn. The 
result was the construction in 1914 of the present "Frisco Depot." Designed by 
staff architects and built by the company's Bridge and Building Crew, the new 
facility—by its size and bulk—demonstrated the importance of the community to 
the Frisco system. This was also suggested by the fact that the regional business 
offices of the company were housed in the building. That the depot also contained 
a Harvey House restaurant and provided self-contained quarters for the "Harvey 
House girls" also reflected the significance of the site. Operating until the 
depression, this restaurant provided the ultimate in passenger service for travelers 
utilizing the east-west or north-south trains on the Frisco system. But not all 
passengers were served in the Harvey House: at the north end of the depot was a 
segregated waiting room for blacks.
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